
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

October 14, 2019 
6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Butch Williams; Vestavia Hills Senior Chaplain  

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

a. Postponement of Ordinance Number 2875 To October 28, 2019 At 6 PM By 

Request Of The Petitioner – Mayor Ashley C. Curry (see first read) 

b. Announcement Of Vacancy On Vestavia Hills Parks And Recreation Board – 

Councilor Paul Head 

c. Announcement Of Vacancy On Vestavia Hills Library Board – Mayor Ashley 

Curry 

6. Proclamation – Magic Moments Day – October 21, 2019 

7. City Manager’s Report 

8. Councilors’ Reports 

9. Financial Reports – George Sawaya, Asst. Treasurer 

10. Approval Of Minutes – September 23, 2019 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

11. Ordinance Number 2872 – An Ordinance For Conditional Use Approval For New Cingular 

Wireless PCS, LLC For Erection Of A 125’ Stealth Cellular Tower To Replace A Light 

Pole At The Soccer Fields Of The Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex; Property is Zoned 

Institutional And Is Owned By The City Of Vestavia Hills   (public hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 2873 – Rezoning – 2647 Gresham Drive; Acreage Adjacent To The 

Former Gresham School, Now Vestavia Hills Dolly Ridge Elementary; Rezone From 

Jefferson County E-1 (Estate Residential) To Vestavia Hills Institutional (Institutional); 

City Of Vestavia Hills Board Of Education, Owner    (public hearing) 

13. Ordinance Number 2874 – Rezoning Amendment – Lot 1A, Resurvey Of Lots 1 & 3; 

Amending Ordinance Number 2110 Conditions To Allow Construction Of A Two-Story 

Commercial Building And Exclude Requirement For Shared Parking With Lot 3A; Clint 

Gentry, Owner   (public hearing) 

 



New Business 

14. Resolution Number 5190 – A Resolution To Approve A Plan For Street Resurfacing 

Pursuant To The Requirements Of The Rebuild Alabama Act 

15. Resolution Number 5192 – A Resolution Re-Appointing A Member To The Design 

Review Committee 

16. Resolution Number 5193 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For American 

Multi Cinema Inc., D/B/A AMC Dine-In Vestavia Hills 10 for a 160 – Special Retail 

license; Kevin Michael Conner, Adam Maximillian Aron and John David McDonald, 

executives   (public hearing) 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Ordinance Number 2875 – Rezoning – 2961 Green Valley Road; Rezone From Vestavia 

Hills R-5 (Multi-Family) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential District); Magnum 

Properties, Owner(s)   (public hearing) (postponed from October 14, 2019 by request of 

petitioner) 

18. Resolution Number 5191 – A Resolution Renaming A City Street From Pine Drive To Pine 

Tree Drive   (public hearing) 

19. Citizen Comments      

20. Motion For Adjournment 



WHEREAS, the emotional and general well-being of children ages 4-18 in the state of 
Alabama diagnosed with chronic life-threatening diseases is enhanced by services 
provided by Magic Moments; and  

 
WHEREAS, children in Alabama suffering with chronic life-threatening diseases are granted 

opportunities to live life without the trials of medical appointments and hospital 
stays for even a moment; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Magic Moments staff sets an annual goal of fulfilling 100 children’s requests 

throughout Alabama; and  
 
WHEREAS, Alabama residents will be aware of Magic Moments and its mission and become 

involved as referring sources; and  
 
WHEREAS,  with awareness of services provided by Magic Moments, Alabama citizens in all 

67 counties will come together to assist in the assurance that all qualifying 
children reap from deserving benefits and live their dreams magically and 
experience childhood normalcy to the fullest. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim October 21st as 
 

MAGIC MOMENTS DAY 
 

and encourage all residents of Vestavia Hills to join with me in celebrating Magic 
Moments 35 years of granting wishes to the children of Alabama. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 10th day of October 2019. 

 
 

__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry, Mayor 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 23, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Pro-Tem Weaver called the 
meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor  

Paul Head, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
 

Steve Dedmon, Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Mayor is out of town this week and Councilor Pierce had run 
into unexpected traffic following an out-of-town funeral   He announced that a quorum is 
present and business will be conducted. 

 Mrs. Cook welcomed Archer and Cooper Williamson, Boy Scouts from Troop 76, Grace 
UMC in Liberty Park. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Erin Holt and Cary Bates who, representing the Chamber of 
Commerce Board. 

o Ms. Holt stated that the Helping Hands in the Hills event was a complete success.  
She read the quantities collected along with 212 volunteers, 19 projects, 1 
neighborhood, 2 school groups, 1 civic club (Rotary), 5 churches and 3 teams from 



City Council Minutes 
September 23, 2019 

Page 2 
 

Chamber.  She stated there was also lots of support from VHPD, who assisted with 
prescription drug disposal, as well as Parks and Recreation. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem presented a proclamation designating September 2019 as “Blood 
Cancer Awareness Month.”  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation and Councilor Head presented it 
to Tricia Center, LLC Campaign Manager and Student of the Year; Rebecca Habermann-LLS 
Executive Director; Kate Siqueira, Campaign Manager, Light of the Night; Julie Moon, 
Campaign Manager, Man & Woman of the Year; Katherine Fleming, LLS, Operations; Faith 
Gardner, Chair, Students of the Year; Whitney Henderson, Chair, Man & Woman of the Year; 
Kevin Collins, Board of Trustees member; Adam Cohen, Board of Trustees member; Harrison 
Downes, VHHS student. 
 
 Tricia Center thanked the Council for the support and the proclamation  
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem presented a proclamation designating October 7, 2019 as 
“International Trigeminal Neuralgia Awareness Day.”  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation. 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem presented a proclamation designating October 6-12, 2019 as “Fire 
Safety Week” and October 2019 as “Fire Prevention Month.”  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation 
and Councilor Head presented it to Fire Chief Marvin Green. 
 
 Chief Green thanked the council for support.  He stated that three lives were lost in the 
City last year and fire prevention is very important.  He urged everyone to plan their escape routes 
early and always be aware. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that one of the things required in the new gas tax increase was for a 
plan to be attached to the expenditures and that plan must be adopted by the Council.  He 
stated there is $1.3 million allocated for street resurfacing in the FY2020 budget with 
$146,000 or 11 percent of the total derived through the Rebuild Alabama Act.  The 
proposed plan will appear on a Council agenda soon and, after approval, must be posted 
to the website. 

 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 23, 2019 

Page 3 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that she attended a tour at the Birmingham Recycling and Recovery 
Center with some other Councilors who meet every month to discuss topics of interest to 
their municipalities.  Mrs. Cook stated that they became aware of a lack of information 
concerning recycling and decided to begin an informational campaign to inform residents 
as to what is allowed and what may contaminate recycling and possibly cost the City more 
money.  She stated they hope this will increase good recycling materials for 
municipalities, with less contamination, which should reduce the City’s costs.  Mrs. Cook 
stated that more information will be forthcoming. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a work session on 
October 2, 2019, at 5 PM to discuss upcoming rezoning requests. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending July 2019.  He read and 
explained the balances. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked if there was any particular reason for the sales tax collections running 
higher than budgeted.  Mr. Downes explained that the City shows about 4% net growth, not taking 
into account the one-cent sales tax increase. Even though construction materials tax collections 
have been sluggish, the City stays strong on grocery sales which sustains us and contributes to 
growth. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting were presented for approval:  August 19, 2018 
(Work Session), September 4, 2019 (Work Session) and September 9, 2019 (Regular Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the August 19, 2018 (Work 

Session), September 4, 2019 (Work Session) and September 9, 2019 (Regular 
Meeting); and approve them as presented was by Mrs. Cook and second by Mr. 
Head.   Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
  



City Council Minutes 
September 23, 2019 

Page 4 
 

 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2869 
 

Ordinance Number 2869 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – Acreage Adjacent To Former 
Gresham School (Vestavia Hills Elementary Dolly Ridge); Vestavia Hills 
Board Of Education, Owner(s)    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2869 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head.   
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further 
address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5188 
 

Resolution Number 5188 – Alcohol License – SAZA, Inc., d/b/a Cahaba Heights Texaco For 
The Off-Premise Sale Of 050–Retail Beer and 070-Retail Table Wine; Sonia 
Noorallah Charania, Executive  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5188 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head.   
 
 Sonia Charania was presented in regard to the request. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about training of employees according to the responsible vendor 
program. 
 
 Mrs. Charania explained they use the responsible vendors program and require scanning 
of identification for both liquor and tobacco. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated she is happy to hear that includes sale of e-cigarettes.  She asked about 
the reason for the change of license. 
 
 Mrs. Charania stated that they just purchased the business. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further 
address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem closed the public hearing and called for the question.  
Roll call vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
September 23, 2019 

Page 5 
 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5189 
 

Resolution Number 5189 – A Resolution Approving Financing Terms For City Vehicles 
And/Or Equipment Through BB&T Bank 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5189 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head.   
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this approves an interest rate for lease purchases of certain 
equipment and vehicles in the budget. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2876 
 

Ordinance Number 2876 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Take All Actions Necessary To Secure A Leasing And Maintenance Of Select 
Vehicles For The City 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2876 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head.   
 
 Mr. Downes explained. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2877 
 

Ordinance Number 2877 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Sidewalks Along CR-
42 (Massey Road) From SR-3 (US-31 Montgomery Highway) To CR-99 
(Columbiana Road) In The City; Project CMAQ-7030(600) 

 



City Council Minutes 
September 23, 2019 

Page 6 
 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2877 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 
Head.   

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this and the following Ordinance are for the ALDOT Massey 
Road project that was discussed at several meetings.  ALODT has approved the construction 
plans and these allow budgeting, funding, acquisition of ROW and utility relocations. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked when this project began. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated it was begun in 2012 and they still are not in construction. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked if the plans are final. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated there are still some revisions forthcoming, but they are minor. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2878 
 

Ordinance Number 2878 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Sidewalks Along CR-
42 (Massey Road) From SR-3 (US-31 Montgomery Highway) To CR-99 
(Columbiana Road) In The City; Project CMAQ-7030(600); CPMS 
Ref#100057173 And 100057174 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2878 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head.   
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2879 
 

Ordinance Number 2879 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Proposed Project 
Number DE-HPP-TAPBH-A124( ) Pedestrian Walkway Over US-31 In 
Vestavia Hills Near Wald Park, Jefferson County 

 



City Council Minutes 
September 23, 2019 

Page 7 
 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2879 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 
Head.   

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is another funding agreement to move to construction 
drawings which will allow this project to move to the next phase.  
 
 Mrs. Cook asked when this project actually was begun. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated the request began around 2004. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem announced that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on October 14, 2019, at 6:00 
PM. 

 Ordinance Number 2872 – An Ordinance For Conditional Use Approval For New 
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC For Erection Of A 125’ Stealth Cellular Tower To Replace 
A Light Pole At The Soccer Fields Of The Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex; Property is 
Zoned Institutional And Is Owned By The City Of Vestavia Hills   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2873 – Rezoning – 2647 Gresham Drive; Acreage Adjacent To The 
Former Gresham School, Now Vestavia Hills Dolly Ridge Elementary; Rezone From 
Jefferson County E-1 (Estate Residential) To Vestavia Hills Institutional (Institutional); 
City Of Vestavia Hills Board Of Education, Owner    (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2874 – Rezoning Amendment – Lot 1A, Resurvey Of Lots 1 & 3; 
Amending Ordinance Number 2110 Conditions To Allow Construction Of A Two-Story 
Commercial Building And Exclude Requirement For Shared Parking With Lot 3A; Clint 
Gentry, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2875 – Rezoning – 2961 Green Valley Road; Rezone From Vestavia 
Hills R-5 (Multi-Family) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential District); Magnum 
Properties, Owner(s)   (public hearing) 

 
  



City Council Minutes 
September 23, 2019 

Page 8 
 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that he received a yellow card in the mail this 
year from the Jefferson County Board of Equalization and he believes the 26% increase in tax on 
his property are unreasonable  He stated that he studied other comparable properties and the 
increases being delivered to residents of the City are “insane.” 
 
 At 6:35 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:36 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Rusty Weaver 
      Mayor Pro-tem 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2872 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2872 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4851 & 4871 SICARD 
HOLLOW ROAD (SHAC) FOR INSTALLATION OF A 125’ 
STEALTH CELLULAR TOWER REPLACING A LIGHT POLE AT 
THE SOCCER FIELD  

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City of 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, lease holder interest for the City 

of Vestavia Hills, owner of the property located at 4851 & 4871 Sicard Hollow Road zoned 

Vestavia Hills Inst (institutional district); and 

 WHEREAS, New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC presented an application for 

Conditional Use approval for the purpose of erecting a 125’ stealth cellular tower to replace 

a light pole at the soccerfields of the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex (“SHAC”); and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the application for Conditional Use approval by New 

Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC detailing the location of the structure is marked as Exhibit A, 

attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2872 as though written fully 

therein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby granted for New Cingular Wireless PCS, 

LLC for the purpose of erecting a 125’ stealth cellular tower to replace a light 

pole at the soccerfields of the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex (“SHAC”); and 

2. Said conditional use approval shall be conditioned upon the required 

ingress/egress easement requested in said application shall be recorded in the 

Jefferson County Judge of Probate and a recorded copy of said agreement shall 

be presented to the City Clerk; and 

3. Should the new structure be destroyed or cease to exist on the property for a 

period of twelve (12) consecutive months, said use shall be considered null and 

void and said structure shall be immediately removed; and 



Ordinance Number 2872 
Page 2 

4. This Ordinance Number 2872 shall become effective immediately upon

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of October, 

2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2872 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 14th day of October, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 











1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 08, 2019

CASE:  P-0714-30

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use approval for a new wireless 
telecommunication facility

ADDRESS/LOCATION: SHAC

APPLICANT/OWNER: New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC; Baker Donelson

REPRESENTING AGENT: Andy, Rotenstreich, Mary Palmer

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The applicants have entered a tentative agreement with 
the City to construct a new cell tower at SHAC. The pad and pole would be located 
on the western side of the complex and would extend 130’ in the air. If approved by 
Council an easement would be recorded to provide access for maintenance. The 
request seems to meet the requirements for telecommunication facilities in Section 
7.9 of the Zoning Code, which the applicants will address in the meeting. The
property is currently zoned Vestavia Hills Inst-1.

LIBERTY PARK PUD: The request is consistent with the PUD Plan.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Conditional Use not final until easement 
has been recorded.

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Conditional Use approval for a new 
wireless telecommunication facility with the condition that the easement must be recorded before 
conditional use is valid. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as 
follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Article 7 USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS 

§7.9. Telecommunications Facilities 
7.9.1. Purpose. The purpose of these standards 

is to establish minimum considerations 
and criteria for the review of 
telecommunications facilities. It is the 
City of Vestavia Hill’s express intent that 
the construction of new towers be an 
option of last resort; to the greatest extent 
feasible, location of antennae on existing 
towers and other suitable structures 
should first be sought. These standards 
are designed to ensure the compatibility 
of towers with and avoid adverse impacts 
to nearby properties and discourage the 
proliferation of towers throughout the 
City.

7.9.2. Applicability. All telecommunication 
facilities are subject to these standards 
and to statutory review by the 
Commission and Council in accordance 
with Section 11-52-11 of the Code of 
Alabama, 1975, as amended. Anything 
contained in this Ordinance to the 
contrary notwithstanding, 
telecommunications facilities are 
conditional uses, which require approval 
by the Council.

7.9.3. Objectives. The proposed locations and 
design of all telecommunication facilities 
shall duly consider the following public 
health, safety and general welfare 
objectives:

1. Structural Safety. The proposed facility 
will comply with wind loading and other 
structural standards contained in 
applicable building and technical codes 
so as not to endanger the health and 
safety of residents, employees or 
travelers in the event of structural failure 
of the tower due to extreme weather 
conditions or other acts of God.

2. View Protection. The proposed facility 
will be designed to minimize adverse 
visual impacts to surrounding properties 

and the public right-of-way, given the 
topography of the proposed site and 
surrounding area. 

3. Land Use Compatibility. The proposed 
facility will be compatible with the 
surrounding land uses, given the 
character of the use and development of 
the location.

4. Design Harmony. The proposed facility 
will be designed in harmony with the 
natural setting and the surrounding 
development pattern as well as to the 
highest industry standards. 

5. Existing Communication Services. The 
proposed facility will comply with FCC 
and other applicable standards so as not 
to interfere with existing communication 
services in the area. 

6. Health Effects. The proposed tower will 
comply with all applicable federal, state, 
county and City health standards so as 
not to cause detrimental health effects to 
persons in the surrounding area. 

7.9.4. Development Criteria. The Building 
Official and City Engineer shall review 
all applications for telecommunications 
facilities for compliance with the 
applicable standards and criteria listed 
below. These criteria are considered the 
minimum necessary to protect the public 
health, safety and general welfare. The 
Commission may also impose higher 
standards if it deems them to be 
necessary to further the objectives of this 
Section.

1. Co-Location. No new tower shall be 
established if space is structurally, 
technically and economically available 
on an existing tower, which would serve 
the area that, the new tower would serve. 
Documentation that reasonable efforts 
have been made by the applicant to 
achieve co-location shall be submitted in 
accordance with §7.9.4.2 below. Towers 

p. 7-9 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Ordinance Number 2331 
Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 

shall be designed to maximize shared use 
to the greatest extent possible, given the 
structural and technical limitations of the 
type of tower proposed. In any event, co-
location shall be encouraged. If feasible, 
each tower shall, at a minimum, be 
designed for double its intended use for 
all transmitting and receiving antennae 
other than microwave dish antennae.

2. Removal of Obsolete Towers. Any tower 
that is no longer in use for its original 
communications purpose shall be 
removed at the owners’ expense. The 
owner shall provide the Building Official 
with a copy of the notice of the FCC of 
intent to cease operations, which shall be 
given ninety (90) days from the date of 
ceasing operations to remove the 
obsolete tower and accessory structures. 
In the case of multiple operators sharing 
use of single tower, this provision shall 
not become effective until all users cease 
operations. 

3. Setbacks.

a. Where permitted, the distance between 
the base of the tower, including guys, 
accessory facilities and property lines 
abutting residential districts, public 
parks and roads must equal twenty 
(20) percent of the tower height. 
Property lines adjacent to other uses 
(e.g. agricultural, industrial) shall 
require a setback equal to the rear yard 
setback established for the underlying 
zone.

b. Notwithstanding Item a above, when 
located within or adjacent to a 
residential district or dwelling, the 
minimum standard setback from all 
adjoining residential property 
boundaries shall be fifty (50) feet. 

c. Site plan review by the Commission 
may result in reduction of the standard 
setbacks in exceptional cases where a 
hardship would result due to unusual 

conditions on the site or other 
impracticalities. However, the 
Commission shall not reduce the 
setbacks to the detriment of affected 
residential properties.

4. Appearance. 

a. Towers shall be of a monopole type 
and shall maintain an exterior finish so 
as to reduce the visibility of the 
structure, unless other standards are 
required by the FAA.

b. The design of the tower shall be of a 
type that has the least visual impact on 
the surrounding area as determined by 
the Commission. 

c. The design of the tower compound 
shall, to the greatest extent possible, 
maximize use of building materials, 
colors, textures, screening and 
landscaping that effectively blend the 
tower facilities within the surrounding 
natural setting and built environment.

5. Lighting. Towers shall not be artificially 
lighted unless required by FAA or other 
authority for safety purposes. Where 
required, the Commission shall review 
the available lighting alternatives to 
assure that lighting proposed would 
cause the least disturbance to the 
surrounding views. “Dual lighting” (red 
at night/strobe during the day) shall be 
preferred unless restricted by the FAA. 
Security lighting may be permitted in 
accordance with Item e: Security 
Devices, below. 

6. Landscaping. 

a. A landscaped buffer shall effectively 
screen the view of the tower 
compound from adjacent public ways 
and residential properties.

b. The standard buffer shall consist of a 
minimum eight (8) feet wide 
landscaped strip outside the dark vinyl 
coated steel security fencing of the 

p. 7-10 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Article 7 USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS 

perimeter of the compound. The buffer 
strip shall be planted with an attractive 
combination of trees, shrubs, vines 
and/or ground covers that can achieve 
the full height of the fence at maturity 
and enhances the outward appearance 
of the security fence. For sites within 
1,000 feet of a residence, site review 
by the Commission may impose 
increased buffer standards to include a 
decay-resistant, solid wood fence, 
earth berms and brick or masonry 
walls in addition to the security 
fencing. All fencing and landscaping 
shall be maintained by the 
lessor/owner. 

c. In isolated non-residential areas, 
alternative landscaping methods may 
be accepted, such as the use of earth 
toned colored, vinyl-coated steel 
security fencing in combination with 
four feet of evergreen trees, shrubs, 
vines and/or other plantings.

d. In certain locations where the visual 
impact of the tower would be minimal, 
such as remote, agricultural or rural 
locations, or developed heavy 
industrial areas, the landscaping 
requirements may be reduced or 
waived by the Commission. 

e. Existing mature tree growth and 
natural landforms on the site shall be 
preserved to the maximum extent 
possible. In some cases, such as towers 
located on large, wooded lots, 
preservation of substantial natural 
growth around the property perimeter 
may be a sufficient buffer.

f. Cellular facilities utilizing 
underground vaults in lieu of above 
ground switching gear buildings shall 
be exempted from any buffer 
requirements. 

7. Security Devices. The facility shall be 
fully secured. A minimum eight (8) feet 

high, dark vinyl coated steel fence shall 
be installed around the entire perimeter 
of the compound (measured to the top of 
the fence or barbed wired, if applicable). 
Security fencing shall require screening 
in accordance with landscaping 
requirements, as defined above. Other 
security measures shall include locks and 
alarms. Approved barbed or razor wire 
and lighting of the compound shall be 
permitted, if deemed necessary to fully 
secure the tower compound.

8. Access. Driveways and onsite parking 
shall be provided to assure the operator’s 
access to the facility for maintenance or 
emergency services.

7.9.5. Application. Any application submitted 
for approval shall submit the following 
items, in addition to any other required 
items, to show compliance with these 
review standards.

1. Statement of Impact on Health, Safety 
and Welfare. A brief written statement 
shall address conformance with the 
health, safety and welfare objectives of 
this guideline.

2. Site Plan. A scaled site plan shall show 
the location and dimensions of all 
improvements, including setbacks, 
drives, parking, fencing, landscaping, 
and other information necessary to 
determine compliance with the 
development criteria of these guidelines. 

3. Rendering. A rendering of the tower, 
accessory facilities and compound shall 
depict colors, materials and treatment. If 
lighting or other FAA requirements for 
tower color is proposed, evidence of such 
requirement shall be submitted.

4. Justification for a New Tower. The 
applicant shall document a proposal for a 
new tower that the planned equipment 
for a proposed tower cannot be 
accommodated on an existing tower 

p. 7-11 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Ordinance Number 2331 
Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 

within the proposed service area. The 
applicant shall submit a written affidavit 
showing what attempts have been made 
to share an existing tower or that no such 
tower exists. 

5. Certification of Shared Use Design. A 
qualified, registered engineer shall certify 
that the proposed tower’s structural 
design can accommodate a minimum of 
two (2) shared users, in accordance with 
§7.9.4 Development Criteria.

6. As Built Survey. A qualified, registered 
engineer shall certify that the proposed 
tower is to be constructed and installed in 
accordance with the submitted site plan 
including the installation of any required 
buffer yard. 

7. Total anticipated capacity of the 
structure, including the number and types 
of antennae that can be accommodated.

8. Mitigation measures for ice and other 
hazardous falling debris, including 
setbacks and de-icing equipment. 

7.9.6. Exceptions. Towers camouflaged to 
resemble woody trees or indigenous 
vegetation to blend in with the native 
landscape, and other types of 
concealment, shall be reviewed by the 
Design Review Board. Concealment 
techniques are design methods used to 
blend a wireless telecommunications 
facility, including any antennas thereon, 
unobtrusively into the existing 
surroundings so as to not have the 
appearance of a wireless 
telecommunications facility. Such 
structures shall be considered wireless 
telecommunications facilities and not 
spires, belfries, cupolas, or other 
appurtenances usually required to be 
placed above the roof level for purposes 
of applying height limitations. Due to 
their height, such structures must be 
designed with sensitivity to elements 

such as building bulk, massing and 
architectural treatment of both the 
wireless telecommunications facility and 
surrounding development. Concealed 
towers on developed property must be 
disguised to appear as either a part of the 
structure housing, a principal uses, or an 
accessory structure that is normally 
associated with the principal use 
occupying the property. Concealed 
towers developed on unimproved 
property must be disguised to blend in 
with existing vegetation. 

p. 7-12 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



 

 

AT&T Mobility, Inc. 
1876 Data Drive 
Hoover, AL 35244 
 

 

 
 
 
 
July 9, 2019 
 
 
 
Conrad Garrison 
City Planner 
1032 Montgomery Hwy 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
 
 
Reference: AT&T Mobility, LLC 
Site:   Liberty Park South (USID 194907) 
Site Location: Vestavia Hills Candidate near 4870 Sicard Hollow Rd, Vestavia Hills, AL 35242 
 
  
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
AT&T Mobility, LLC herein referred to as “AT&T” is currently enhancing our network architecture to 
meet the growing demands of wireless voice and data customers in many areas of Alabama and 
Northwest Florida. This is necessary to provide such features as mobile internet, enhanced voice 
telephony, audio and video streaming, connectivity to cloud-based storage services, IoT (Internet of 
Things) devices, and mobile apps at the quality of service expected by our subscribers. To most 
efficiently utilize all available wireless spectrum to serve event locations, we must increase the 
complexity of our wireless radio systems and improve traffic distribution in areas of high utilization. 
  
AT&T is currently requesting to construct a 130’ foot wireless transmission tower at the location 
referenced above. This new transceiver location is needed to improve indoor coverage to the many 
commercial locations and residential homes around the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex. The location 
of this site is critical to successfully cover the numerous new developments in this fast-growing area of 
Vestavia Hills Alabama and also provide the necessary capacity/data throughput to this busy area of 
our network. The requested antenna rad center of 120’ (130’ overall height) will allow for a significant 
amount of needed coverage expansion in the target area and also allow for future capacity expansion 
for the expected capacity growth. Some specific locations where the new Liberty Park South tower will 
enhance coverage include: the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex, the Liberty Park Soccer Complex, 
Liberty Park Elementary, the Lunker Lake area, as well as many homes, business, and new 
developments around the Liberty Parkway and Sicard Hollow Road intersection. 
 
In high-traffic locations such as Vestavia Hills Alabama new sites are being required to meet growing 
customer demands for bandwidth-sensitive applications because the distance covered by wireless 
transmissions directly affects the digital bandwidth delivered to the receiver. By building sites closer to 
our customers, we are able to supply those customers with the higher data-speeds and greater service 
value they demand. 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



 

 

The indoor coverage improvement expected from this site is illustrated in the included maps showing 
service levels before and after the site is commissioned. In this suburban environment, increased signal 
strength and denser site spacing is needed to increase in-building service and provide the needed 
capacity.  When the proposed site is commissioned, the area will improve substantially providing 
strong, reliable signal levels, improved capacity, and yield higher data speeds to many of the areas 
around the site as noted above. 
 
In this market existing structures are evaluated if adequately suited to the network in meeting the 
increasing demands of our customers and the value of the structure is sufficient for the considerable 
long-term investment being made. There are only two known existing structures within a 1 mile radius 
of the proposed AT&T location. The first is a 130’ Crown Castle flagpole located 0.12 miles to the 
southwest at the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex. This existing flagpole does not have adequate space 
for AT&T to install their antennas and previous proposed extensions of this tower resulted in a badly 
failing structural analysis. Lack of space on this tower caused it to not be an adequate option for 
AT&T. The next nearest known macro communication structure is a 130’ Verizon tower located 0.69 
miles away to the northeast. This tower is outside the search ring for the Liberty Park South site 
location and would not provide an adequate antenna rad center needed to provide in-building coverage 
to the locations around the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex and the homes near the Liberty Parkway 
and Sicard Hollow Road intersection. All other known existing communication structures in this area, 
other than the two mentioned above, are roughly 2.3 miles or more from the proposed location and are 
already existing AT&T cell sites. The lack of a suitable collocation candidate within the search area of 
the Liberty Park South site drives the need for construction of a new structure. 
 
The maps provided are derived from a tool called Atoll™ produced by Forsk®. These predictions use 
digital topography based on data from the USGS and ‘clutter models’ derived from satellite imagery 
detailing the topology of an area. These clutter models are categorically tested for typical incurred 
losses. These loss estimates are then further tuned with regional propagation studies to better calculate 
the signal level expectations of a given area and provide an accurate prediction of expected coverage 
 
Should you require any additional information, or if you should have any questions, please feel free to 
contact me at cv011n@att.com or 205-517-4154. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Christopher M. Vaughn 
Senior RAN Engineer 
AT&T Mobility, LLC 
 
Enclosure:  Existing and Proposed Propagation Maps, Existing Towers Within 1 mile map, AT&T 
Jefferson/Shelby Spectrum & Technology letter. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

1 
- R

FD
S 

G
EN

ER
AL

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
R

FD
S 

N
A

M
E:

AL
L0

49
77

D
A

TE
:

11
/1

7/
20

17
R

F 
D

ES
IG

N
 E

N
G

:
Ey

ra
m

 K
un

aw
ot

or

IS
SU

E:
A

pp
ro

ve
d?

 (Y
/N

):
Ye

s
R

F 
D

ES
IG

N
 P

H
O

N
E:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
:

R
F 

M
A

N
A

G
ER

:
Th

om
as

 G
an

dy
R

F 
D

ES
IG

N
 E

M
A

IL
:

EK
31

58
@

AT
T.

C
O

M

IN
IT

IA
TI

VE
 /P

R
O

JE
C

T:

LT
E 

4C
-A

W
S3

 J
 (1

0 
M

H
z)

 B
an

d 
66

LT
E 

5C
-8

50
 - 

5 
M

H
z

LT
E 

6C
-7

00
 M

H
z 

U
PP

ER
 D

 (1
0 

M
H

z)
 B

an
d 

14

R
F 

PE
R

F 
EN

G
:

R
FD

S 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 T

YP
E:

20
19

 L
TE

 N
ex

t C
ar

rie
r

R
F 

PE
R

F 
PH

O
N

E:
R

FD
S 

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y:

LT
E 

6C

R
F 

PE
R

F 
EM

A
IL

:
ST

A
TE

/S
TA

TU
S:

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y/

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d

R
FD

S 
VE

R
SI

O
N

:
2.

00
R

FD
S 

ID
:

24
60

27
0

G
SM

 F
R

EQ
U

EN
C

Y:
C

re
at

ed
 B

y:
ek

31
58

U
pd

at
ed

 B
y:

ek
31

58

U
M

TS
 F

R
EQ

U
EN

C
Y:

D
at

e 
C

re
at

ed
:

7/
6/

20
18

 4
:2

5:
41

PM
D

at
e 

U
pd

at
ed

:
12

/1
7/

20
18

11
:5

5:
46

 A
M

LT
E 

FR
EQ

U
EN

C
Y:

5G
 F

R
EQ

U
EN

C
Y:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 1

:
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
14

7
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#1
:

LT
E 

N
ex

t C
ar

rie
r |

| L
TE

 6
C

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 2

:
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

3
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#2
:

LT
E 

N
ex

t C
ar

rie
r |

| L
TE

 5
C

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 3

:
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

2
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#3
:

LT
E 

N
ex

t C
ar

rie
r |

| L
TE

 4
C

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 4

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#4
:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 5

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#5
:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 6

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#6
:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 7

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#7
:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 8

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#8
:

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
- L

O
C

AT
IO

N
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

U
SI

D
:

19
49

07
FA

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
D

E:
12

77
82

84
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
 N

A
M

E:
LI

BE
R

TY
 P

AR
K 

SO
U

TH

R
EG

IO
N

:
SO

U
TH

EA
ST

M
A

R
K

ET
 C

LU
ST

ER
:

AL
AB

AM
A/

M
IS

SI
SS

IP
PI

/L
O

U
IS

IA
N

A
M

A
R

K
ET

:
BI

R
M

IN
G

H
AM

A
D

D
R

ES
S:

48
70

 S
IC

AR
D

 H
O

LL
O

W
 R

O
AD

C
IT

Y:
BI

R
M

IN
G

H
AM

ST
A

TE
:

AL

ZI
P 

C
O

D
E:

35
24

2
C

O
U

N
TY

:
SH

EL
BY

LO
N

G
 (D

EC
. D

EG
.):

-8
6.

66
72

28
0

LA
TI

TU
D

E 
(D

-M
-S

):
33

d 
28

m
37

.3
51

2s
LO

N
G

IT
U

D
E 

(D
-M

-S
):

-8
6d

 -4
0m

-2
.0

20
8s

LA
T 

(D
EC

. D
EG

.):
33

.4
77

04
20

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

S,
 A

C
C

ES
S 

A
N

D
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 1
:

26
53

A0
H

Q
H

Q
PA

C
E 

JO
B

 #
 1

:
M

R
AL

M
02

91
89

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 2
:

26
53

A0
H

Q
H

P
PA

C
E 

JO
B

 #
 2

:
M

R
AL

M
02

91
94

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 3
:

26
53

A0
H

Q
H

N
PA

C
E 

JO
B

 #
 3

:
M

R
AL

M
02

91
93

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 4
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 4
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 5
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 5
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 6
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 6
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 7
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 7
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 8
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 8
:

B
O

R
D

ER
 C

EL
L 

W
IT

H
 C

O
N

TO
U

R
 C

O
O

R
D

:
SE

A
R

C
H

 R
IN

G
 N

A
M

E:
Li

be
rty

 P
ar

k 
So

ut
h

A
M

 S
TU

D
Y 

R
EQ

'D
 (Y

/N
):

N
o

SE
A

R
C

H
_R

IN
G

_I
D

:
LI

BE
R

TY
 P

AR
K 

SO
U

TH

FR
EQ

 C
O

O
R

D
:

B
TA

:
M

SA
 / 

R
SA

:

O
PS

 D
IS

TR
IC

T:
LA

C
(G

SM
):

O
PS

 Z
O

N
E:

LA
C

(U
M

TS
):

R
F 

D
IS

TR
IC

T:
B

SC
(G

SM
):

R
F 

ZO
N

E:
R

N
C

(U
M

TS
):

PA
R

EN
T 

N
A

M
E(

G
SM

):
M

M
E 

PO
O

L 
ID

(L
TE

):
FF

10

PA
R

EN
T 

N
A

M
E(

U
M

TS
):

Se
ct

io
n 

3 
- L

IC
EN

SE
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E/
FI

LI
N

G
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

C
G

SA
 - 

N
O

 F
IL

IN
G

 T
R

IG
G

ER
ED

 (Y
es

/N
o)

:
N

o
C

G
SA

 L
O

SS
:

PC
S 

R
ED

U
C

ED
 - 

U
PS

 Z
IP

:

C
G

SA
 - 

M
IN

O
R

 F
IL

IN
G

 N
EE

D
ED

 (Y
es

/N
o)

::
N

o
C

G
SA

 E
XT

 A
G

M
T 

N
EE

D
ED

:
PC

S 
PO

PS
 R

ED
U

C
ED

:

C
G

SA
 - 

M
A

JO
R

 F
IL

IN
G

 N
EE

D
ED

 (Y
es

/N
o)

:
Ye

s
C

G
SA

 S
C

O
R

EC
A

R
D

U
PD

A
TE

D
:

C
G

SA
 C

A
LL

 S
IG

N
S:

 

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
- T

O
W

ER
/R

EG
U

LA
TO

R
Y 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
ST

R
U

C
TU

R
E 

A
T&

T 
O

W
N

ED
?:

N
o

G
R

O
U

N
D

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

 (f
t):

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

E 
TY

PE
:

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

R
EG

U
LA

TO
R

Y?
:

N
o

H
EI

G
H

T 
O

VE
R

A
LL

 (f
t):

FC
C

 A
SR

 N
U

M
B

ER
:

SU
B

-L
EA

SE
 R

IG
H

TS
?:

N
o

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

E 
H

EI
G

H
T 

(ft
):

LI
G

H
TI

N
G

 T
YP

E:

 a

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 7
00

 M
H

z 
B

an
d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 8
50

 M
H

z 
B

an
d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 1
90

0 
M

H
z 

B
an

d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 A
W

S 
B

an
d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 W
C

S 
B

an
d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 F
ut

ur
e 

B
an

d:

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

5 
- E

-9
11

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 - 

ex
is

tin
g

PS
A

P 
N

A
M

E:
PS

A
P 

ID
:

E9
11

 P
H

A
SE

:
M

PC
 S

VC
 P

R
O

VI
D

ER
:

LM
U

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
:

SE
C

TO
R

 A
E-

91
1

 S
EC

TO
R

 B

 S
EC

TO
R

 C

 S
EC

TO
R

 D

 S
EC

TO
R

 E

 S
EC

TO
R

 F

 O
M

N
I

ES
R

N
:

D
A

TE
 L

IV
E 

PH
1:

D
A

TE
 L

IV
E 

PH
2:

Se
ct

io
n 

5 
- E

-9
11

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 - 

fin
al

PS
A

P 
 N

A
M

E:
PS

A
P 

ID
:

E9
11

 P
H

A
SE

:
M

PC
 S

VC
 P

R
O

VI
D

ER
:

LM
U

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
:

SE
C

TO
R

 A
E-

91
1

SE
C

TO
R

 B

SE
C

TO
R

 C

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

ES
R

N
:

D
A

TE
 L

IV
E 

PH
1:

D
A

TE
 L

IV
E 

PH
2:

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

6 
- R

BS
 G

EN
ER

AL
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 - 
ex

is
tin

g
LT

E 
1S

T 
R

B
S

LT
E 

2N
D

 R
B

S

R
B

S 
ID

:
59

69
33

C
TS

 C
O

M
M

O
N

 ID
:

AL
L0

49
77

C
EL

L 
ID

 / 
B

C
F:

AL
L0

49
77

B
TA

/T
ID

:

4-
9 

D
IG

IT
 S

IT
E 

ID
:

49
77

C
O

W
 O

R
 T

O
Y?

:
N

o

C
EL

L 
SI

TE
 T

YP
E:

SI
TE

 T
YP

E:

B
TS

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 ID

:

B
A

SE
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 T
YP

E:

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

N
A

M
E:

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

D
IS

A
ST

ER
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y:

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
- R

BS
 G

EN
ER

AL
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 - 
fin

al
LT

E 
1S

T 
R

B
S

LT
E 

2N
D

 R
B

S

R
B

S 
ID

:
59

69
33

R
FD

S_
37

79
21

78

C
TS

 C
O

M
M

O
N

 ID
:

AL
L0

49
77

AL
L0

04
77

C
EL

L 
ID

 / 
B

C
F:

AL
L0

49
77

AL
L0

04
77

B
TA

/T
ID

:

4-
9 

D
IG

IT
 S

IT
E 

ID
:

49
77

04
77

C
O

W
 O

R
 T

O
Y?

:
N

o
N

o

C
EL

L 
SI

TE
 T

YP
E:

SE
C

TO
R

IZ
ED

SE
C

TO
R

IZ
ED

SI
TE

 T
YP

E:
ED

N
B-

LT
E

ED
N

B-
LT

E

B
TS

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 ID

:

B
A

SE
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 T
YP

E:
BA

SE
BA

SE

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

N
A

M
E:

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

D
IS

A
ST

ER
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y:
0

0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

7 
- R

BS
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 - 

ex
is

tin
g

LT
E 

1S
T 

R
B

S
LT

E 
2N

D
 R

B
S

R
A

C
:

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

VE
N

D
O

R
:

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

TY
PE

:

B
A

SE
B

A
N

D
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

A
TI

O
N

:

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

:

C
A

B
IN

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

:

M
A

R
K

ET
 S

TA
TE

 C
O

D
E:

A
G

PS
:

Ye
s

N
O

D
E 

B
 N

U
M

B
ER

:
49

77

Se
ct

io
n 

7 
- R

BS
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 - 

fin
al

LT
E 

1S
T 

R
B

S
LT

E 
2N

D
 R

B
S

R
A

C
:

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

VE
N

D
O

R
:

ER
IC

SS
O

N
ER

IC
SS

O
N

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

TY
PE

:
66

01
 IN

D
O

O
R

 M
U

66
01

 IN
D

O
O

R
 M

U

B
A

SE
B

A
N

D
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

A
TI

O
N

:
1x

66
01

 / 
1x

52
16

 / 
xx

xx
x

xx
xx

x 
/ 1

x6
63

0 
/ x

xx
xx

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

:

C
A

B
IN

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

:

M
A

R
K

ET
 S

TA
TE

 C
O

D
E:

AL
AL

A
G

PS
:

Ye
s

Ye
s

N
O

D
E 

B
 N

U
M

B
ER

:
49

77
47

7

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

8 
- R

BS
/S

EC
TO

R
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 - 

ex
is

tin
g

LT
E 

1S
T 

R
B

S
LT

E 
2N

D
 R

B
S

C
TS

 C
om

m
on

 ID
AL

L0
49

77

So
ft 

Se
ct

or
 ID

s
AL

L0
49

77
_3

A_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
B_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
C

_1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
A_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
B_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
C

_1

Se
ct

io
n 

8 
- R

BS
/S

EC
TO

R
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 - 

fin
al

LT
E 

1S
T 

R
B

S
LT

E 
2N

D
 R

B
S

C
TS

 C
om

m
on

 ID
AL

L0
49

77
AL

L0
04

77

So
ft 

Se
ct

or
 ID

s
AL

L0
49

77
_2

A_
1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
A_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

B_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

D
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

E_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

F_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

A_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

AL
L0

04
77

_8
B_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

AL
L0

04
77

_9
A_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

B_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

AL
L0

04
77

_9
C

_1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
D

_1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
E_

1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
F_

1

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

9 
- S

O
FT

 S
EC

TO
R

 ID
 - 

ex
is

tin
g

LT
E

1S
T 

70
0

LT
E

1S
T 

85
0

LT
E

1S
T 

19
00

LT
E

1S
T 

A
W

S
LT

E
1S

T 
W

C
S

LT
E

2N
D

 7
00

U
SE

ID
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

H
ar

d 
Se

ct
or

)

SE
C

TO
R

 A
SO

FT
 S

EC
TO

R
 ID

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_9

A
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
A

_1

SE
C

TO
R

 B
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
B

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

B
_1

SE
C

TO
R

 C
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

C
_1

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

Se
ct

io
n 

9 
- S

O
FT

 S
EC

TO
R

 ID
 - 

fin
al

LT
E

1S
T 

70
0

LT
E

1S
T 

85
0

LT
E

1S
T 

19
00

LT
E

1S
T 

A
W

S
LT

E
1S

T 
W

C
S

LT
E

2N
D

 7
00

U
SE

ID
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

H
ar

d 
Se

ct
or

)

SE
C

TO
R

 A
SO

FT
 S

EC
TO

R
 ID

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

A
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
A

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

A
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
A

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

A
_2

_F

SE
C

TO
R

 B
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
B

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

B
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
B

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

B
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B

_2
_F

SE
C

TO
R

 C
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

SE
C

TO
R

 D
AL

L0
04

77
_9

D
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

D
_1

SE
C

TO
R

 E
AL

L0
04

77
_9

E
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
E

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

E
_1

SE
C

TO
R

 F
AL

L0
04

77
_9

F
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
F

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

F
_1

O
M

N
I

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

9 
- C

el
l N

um
be

r -
 e

xi
st

in
g

LT
E

1S
T 

70
0

LT
E

1S
T 

85
0

LT
E

1S
T 

19
00

LT
E

1S
T 

A
W

S
LT

E
1S

T 
W

C
S

LT
E

2N
D

 7
00

U
SE

ID
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

H
ar

d 
Se

ct
or

)

SE
C

TO
R

 A
C

EL
L 

N
U

M
B

ER
15

8
14

9

SE
C

TO
R

 B
16

9
15

0

SE
C

TO
R

 C
17

10
15

1

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

Se
ct

io
n 

9 
- C

el
l N

um
be

r -
 fi

na
l

LT
E

1S
T 

70
0

LT
E

1S
T 

85
0

LT
E

1S
T 

19
00

LT
E

1S
T 

A
W

S
LT

E
1S

T 
W

C
S

LT
E

2N
D

 7
00

U
SE

ID
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

H
ar

d 
Se

ct
or

)

SE
C

TO
R

 A
C

EL
L 

N
U

M
B

ER
15

1
8

22
14

9
19

1

SE
C

TO
R

 B
16

2
9

23
15

0
19

2

SE
C

TO
R

 C
17

3
10

24
15

1
19

3

SE
C

TO
R

 D
11

25
15

2

SE
C

TO
R

 E
12

26
15

3

SE
C

TO
R

 F
13

27
15

4

O
M

N
I

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

10
 - 

C
ID

/S
AC

 - 
ex

is
tin

g
LT

E
1S

T 
70

0
LT

E
1S

T 
85

0
LT

E
1S

T 
19

00
LT

E
1S

T 
A

W
S

LT
E

1S
T 

W
C

S
LT

E
2N

D
 7

00

SE
C

TO
R

 A
C

ID
/S

A
C

SE
C

TO
R

 B

SE
C

TO
R

 C

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

Se
ct

io
n 

10
 - 

C
ID

/S
AC

 - 
fin

al
LT

E
1S

T 
70

0
LT

E
1S

T 
85

0
LT

E
1S

T 
19

00
LT

E
1S

T 
A

W
S

LT
E

1S
T 

W
C

S
LT

E
2N

D
 7

00

SE
C

TO
R

 A
C

ID
/S

A
C

SE
C

TO
R

 B

SE
C

TO
R

 C

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

12
 - 

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

T1
 C

O
U

N
TS

 e
xi

st
in

g
LT

E 
1S

T 
C

ab
in

et

# 
T1

s
.

LI
N

K
 P

R
O

FI
LE

R
F 

C
O

M
B

IN
IN

G

FI
B

ER
 o

r E
TH

ER
N

ET
?

Tx
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

Tx
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

R
A

X/
EC

U
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

R
A

X/
EC

U
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

B
B

U
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

B
B

U
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

R
R

U
 - 

lo
ca

tio
n

To
p

FI
B

ER
 J

U
M

PE
R

D
C

 C
A

B
LE

D
C

/F
ib

er
 D

em
. B

ox
2

B
un

dl
ed

 F
ib

er
 C

ab
le

2

B
un

dl
ed

 D
C

 C
ab

le
4

Se
ct

io
n 

14
 - 

N
EW

/P
R

O
PO

SE
D

 T
1 

C
O

U
N

TS
LT

E 
1S

T 
C

ab
in

et

# 
T1

s
.

LI
N

K
 P

R
O

FI
LE

R
F 

C
O

M
B

IN
IN

G

FI
B

ER
 o

r E
TH

ER
N

ET
?

Tx
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

Tx
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

R
A

X/
EC

U
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

R
A

X/
EC

U
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

B
B

U
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

B
B

U
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

R
R

U
 - 

lo
ca

tio
n

To
p

FI
B

ER
 J

U
M

PE
R

D
C

 C
A

B
LE

D
C

/F
ib

er
 D

em
. B

ox
2

B
un

dl
ed

 F
ib

er
 C

ab
le

2

B
un

dl
ed

 D
C

 C
ab

le
4

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

15
A 

- C
U

R
R

EN
T 

TO
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 A
 (O

R
 O

M
N

I)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-V

3
JA

H
H

-6
5C

-R
3B

-V
3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
C

om
m

sc
op

e
C

om
m

sc
op

e

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
95

.7
X1

3.
8X

8.
2

95
.7

X1
3.

8X
8.

2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
80

.2
80

.2

A
ZI

M
U

TH
40

40

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

1
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

1

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
2

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.A
.7

00
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

A_
1

LT
E 

70
0

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_7

22
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.4
3

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_9

A_
1

LT
E 

19
00

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_1

93
0M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.2
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
PO

R
T 

5
19

49
07

.A
.W

C
S.

4G
.tm

p1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

A_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
A_

1
LT

E 
W

C
S

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_2

35
5M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.4
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

15
B 

- C
U

R
R

EN
T 

TO
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 B
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-V

3
JA

H
H

-6
5C

-R
3B

-V
3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
C

om
m

sc
op

e
C

om
m

sc
op

e

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
95

.7
X1

3.
8X

8.
2

95
.7

X1
3.

8X
8.

2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
80

.2
80

.2

A
ZI

M
U

TH
22

0
22

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.B
.7

00
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B_
1

LT
E 

70
0

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_7

22
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.4
3

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_9

B_
1

LT
E 

19
00

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_1

93
0M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.2
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
PO

R
T 

5
19

49
07

.B
.W

C
S.

4G
.tm

p1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

B_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
B_

1
LT

E 
W

C
S

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_2

35
5M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.4
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

15
C

 - 
C

U
R

R
EN

T 
TO

W
ER

 C
O

N
FI

G
U

R
AT

IO
N

 - 
SE

C
TO

R
 C

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 is
LE

FT
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

fr
om

 B
A

C
K

 O
F 

A
N

TE
N

N
A

(u
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 3
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 4

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 6

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-V

3
JA

H
H

-6
5C

-R
3B

-V
3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
C

om
m

sc
op

e
C

om
m

sc
op

e

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
95

.7
X1

3.
8X

8.
2

95
.7

X1
3.

8X
8.

2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
80

.2
80

.2

A
ZI

M
U

TH
31

0
31

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.C
.7

00
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

LT
E 

70
0

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_7

22
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.4
3

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_9

C
_1

LT
E 

19
00

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_1

93
0M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.2
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
PO

R
T 

5
19

49
07

.C
.W

C
S.

4G
.tm

p1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
C

_1
LT

E 
W

C
S

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_2

35
5M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.4
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

16
A 

- P
LA

N
N

ED
/P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 A
 (O

R
 O

M
N

I)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

Ex
is

tin
g 

A
nt

en
na

?

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
40

40
40

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
2

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

4

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.A
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

A_
1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

A_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

D
_1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.A

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

A_
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
A_

1
LT

E 
85

0
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_8

51
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.5
2

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.A

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

A_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
D

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

D
_1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

A_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

D
_1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

16
B 

- P
LA

N
N

ED
/P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 B
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

Ex
is

tin
g 

A
nt

en
na

?

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
22

0
22

0
22

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.B
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B_
1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

B_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

E_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.B

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

B_
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
B_

1
LT

E 
85

0
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_8

51
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.5
2

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.B

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

B_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
E_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

E_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

B_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

E_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

16
C

 - 
PL

AN
N

ED
/P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 C
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

Ex
is

tin
g 

A
nt

en
na

?

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
31

0
31

0
31

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.C
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

C
_1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

F_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.C

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

C
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
C

_1
LT

E 
85

0
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_8

51
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.5
2

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.C

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

C
_1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
F_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

F_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

C
_1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

F_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

17
A 

- F
IN

AL
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 A
 (O

R
 O

M
N

I)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
40

40
40

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

2
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

1
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

2
1

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
4

2

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

1
44

78
 B

14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.A
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

A_
1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

A_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

D
_1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
PO

R
T 

1
19

49
07

.A
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p1
19

49
07

.A
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

A_
1

LT
E 

85
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_8
51

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.5

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.A

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

A_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
D

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

D
_1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

A_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

D
_1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

17
B 

- F
IN

AL
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 B
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
22

0
22

0
22

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

1
44

78
 B

14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.B
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B_
1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

B_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

E_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
PO

R
T 

1
19

49
07

.B
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p1
19

49
07

.B
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

B_
1

LT
E 

85
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_8
51

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.5

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.B

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

B_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
E_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

E_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

B_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

E_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

17
C

 - 
FI

N
AL

 T
O

W
ER

 C
O

N
FI

G
U

R
AT

IO
N

 - 
SE

C
TO

R
 C

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 is
LE

FT
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

fr
om

 B
A

C
K

 O
F 

A
N

TE
N

N
A

(u
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 3
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 4

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 6

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
31

0
31

0
31

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

1
44

78
 B

14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.C
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

C
_1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

F_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
PO

R
T 

1
19

49
07

.C
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p1
19

49
07

.C
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

C
_1

LT
E 

85
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_8
51

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.5

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.C

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

C
_1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
F_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

F_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

C
_1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

F_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



D
ia

gr
am

 - 
Se

ct
or

A
D

ia
gr

am
 F

ile
 N

am
e 

- L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
So

ut
h 

Sp
lit

.v
sd

At
ol

l S
ite

 N
am

e 
-

AL
L0

49
77

Lo
ca

tio
n 

N
am

e 
-

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

M
ar

ke
t -

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
M

ar
ke

t C
lu

st
er

 -
AL

AB
AM

A/
M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
/L

O
U

IS
IA

N
A

C
om

m
en

ts
:  

An
te

nn
a 

2

 
GS

M
D

C/
Fi

be
r

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

DC
 T

ru
nkAn

te
nn

a 
1

 
GS

M
D

C/
Fi

be
r

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

 
GS

M
D

C/
Fi

be
r

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

An
te

nn
a 

5

70
0 

Ba
nd

 1
4

R
RH

Po
w

er
 P

la
nt

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

 
GS

M
D

C/
Fi

be
r

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

70
0

R
RH

TX
1/

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
CTX

2/
RX

2
PC

S 
R

RH

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

PC
S 

R
RH

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

AW
S 

R
RHC

D
A

B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

AW
S 

R
RHC

D

85
0 

 R
RH

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
52

16

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
66

30
ID

L

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



D
ia

gr
am

 - 
Se

ct
or

B
D

ia
gr

am
 F

ile
 N

am
e 

- L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
So

ut
h 

Sp
lit

.v
sd

At
ol

l S
ite

 N
am

e 
-

AL
L0

49
77

Lo
ca

tio
n 

N
am

e 
-

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

M
ar

ke
t -

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
M

ar
ke

t C
lu

st
er

 -
AL

AB
AM

A/
M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
/L

O
U

IS
IA

N
A

C
om

m
en

ts
:  

An
te

nn
a 

2

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

DC
 T

ru
nkAn

te
nn

a 
1

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

An
te

nn
a 

5

70
0 

B
an

d 
14

R
R

H

Po
w

er
 P

la
nt

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

70
0

R
RH

TX
1/

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
CTX

2/
RX

2
P

C
S

 R
R

H

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

P
C

S
 R

R
H

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

A
W

S
 R

R
HC

D
A

B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

A
W

S
 R

R
HC

D

85
0 

 R
R

H

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
52

16

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
66

30
ID

L

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



D
ia

gr
am

 - 
Se

ct
or

C
D

ia
gr

am
 F

ile
 N

am
e 

- L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
So

ut
h 

Sp
lit

.v
sd

At
ol

l S
ite

 N
am

e 
-

AL
L0

49
77

Lo
ca

tio
n 

N
am

e 
-

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

M
ar

ke
t -

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
M

ar
ke

t C
lu

st
er

 -
AL

AB
AM

A/
M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
/L

O
U

IS
IA

N
A

C
om

m
en

ts
:  

An
te

nn
a 

2

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

DC
 T

ru
nkAn

te
nn

a 
1

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

An
te

nn
a 

5

70
0 

B
an

d 
14

R
R

H

Po
w

er
 P

la
nt

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

70
0

R
RH

TX
1/

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
CTX

2/
RX

2
P

C
S

 R
R

H

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

P
C

S
 R

R
H

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

A
W

S
 R

R
HC

D
A

B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

A
W

S
 R

R
HC

D

85
0 

 R
R

H

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
52

16

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
66

30
ID

L

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



N
O

TE
S

D
at

e 
Ti

m
e 

(E
as

te
rn

)
Ve

rs
io

n
AT

TU
ID

N
ot

e

11
/2

9/
20

18
 1

2:
34

:0
2 

PM
2.

00
ek

31
58

R
FD

S 
VE

R
SI

O
N

 in
cr

em
en

te
d.

11
/2

9/
20

18
 1

2:
34

:3
2 

PM
2.

00
ek

31
58

U
pd

at
ed

 lo
w

 b
an

d 
ra

di
o 

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
to

ta
l s

qu
id

 c
ou

nt

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



W
O

R
KF

LO
W

 S
U

M
M

AR
Y

D
at

e
FR

O
M

St
at

e 
/ S

ta
tu

s
FR

O
M

AT
TU

ID
TO

St
at

e 
/ S

ta
tu

s
TO

AT
TU

ID
O

pe
ra

tio
n

C
om

m
en

ts
PA

C
E

St
at

us

07
/0

6/
20

18
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
ek

31
58

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 fo
r A

pp
ro

va
l

JB
66

12
Pr

om
ot

e
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
14

7 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

07
/0

6/
20

18
 5

:5
4:

04
 P

M
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

3 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

07
/0

6/
20

18
 5

:5
4:

04
 P

M
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

2 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

07
/0

6/
20

18
 5

:5
4:

04
 P

M

11
/2

9/
20

18
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Su

bm
itt

ed
 fo

r A
pp

ro
va

l
JB

66
12

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

ek
31

58
Pu

ll 
Ba

ck

12
/1

7/
20

18
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
ek

31
58

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 fo
r A

pp
ro

va
l

JB
66

12
Pr

om
ot

e
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
14

7 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

12
/1

7/
20

18
 1

2:
02

:1
4 

PM
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

3 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

12
/1

7/
20

18
 1

2:
02

:1
4 

PM
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

2 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

12
/1

7/
20

18
 1

2:
02

:1
4 

PM

03
/1

9/
20

19
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Su

bm
itt

ed
 fo

r A
pp

ro
va

l
JB

66
12

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d
EK

31
58

D
em

ot
e

N
ot

 fo
un

d 
in

 P
AC

E 
as

 M
ac

ro
 p

ro
j. 

Sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

 m
y 

W
F.

D
em

ot
ed

 b
ac

k 
to

 R
F

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Site Information

FA Code: 12778284 Street Address: 4870 SICARD HOLLOW ROAD 

USID: 194907 City: BIRMINGHAM

Market: BIRMINGHAM County: SHELBY

Latitude D-M-S: State: AL

Longitude D-M-S: Zip: 35242

Pace Job #: MRALM006034 Submitter: KENNETH ZENGOTITA

Construction Notice to Proceed (CNTP)

Guardian Filling(s) Approved Date - CNTP: 02/28/2019

From Guardian(optional):    Unique Structure ID : 276490 
Latitude : 33-28-37.3 
Longitude : 86-40-02.1 
ASR : 
County : Jefferson 
State : ALABAMA 
Site Name : LIBERTY PARK SOUTH 
Job Id : 1196396 
Region : SOUTHEAST 
Structure Marking and Lighting :Not Required 
FAA Study Number : 
FAA Issue Date : 
Is Notice to FAA of Construction Status (7460-2 Part I)
Required? : 
FAA NOTAM Required within Days (Part I): 
Notification to Airport Manager within (Part I) : 
Is Notice to FAA of Construction Status (7460-2 Part II)

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Required?  : 
FAA NOTAM Required within Days (Part II) : 
Notification to Airport Manager within (Part II) : 
Required FAA Notification Completed on Time : 
Preconstruction Approved Height for the Structure : 125 
Approved Temporary Construction Height : 
Preconstruction Expiration Date : 08/28/2019 
FCC File No : 
Regulatory Group Comments : Please provide all heights within
3 business days of completion 
NEPA expires 12-27-2020

CNTP1 - CNTP Approval:         15.00               Normal   0               false   false   false      EN-US  
X-NONE   X-NONE                                                                                             This serves as your
Construction Notice to Proceed (Greensheet) for the referenced project. Please note approved Overall
Height (do not exceed), Approved Crane Height (if requested), and Preconstruction Expiration Date (if app
licable).

If Scope of Work changes at any time between now and the time of construction complete, please email
your Network Compliance Manager for further compliance review.

If this modification includes the removal of any top mounted equipment that will affect the overall height,
a tape drop with overall height and any required antenna heights must be provided once construction is com
plete.

Overall Height (AGL-ft):                                     125

Frequency Bands:                               PCS (1900 MHz),WCS (2.3 GHz),AWS (2.1 / 1.7 
GHz),Cellular (850 MHz),700 MHz

Height Verification Form Requirements:           All Heights

Additional Comments:

*  PROJECT      TYPE: NSB w/ WLL 1C & LTE 1C – 6C

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



CNTP Approved By:                                     kz9108/KENNETH ZENGOTITA Date:                               02/28/2019
CNTP Acknowledged By:               rr4866/ROBERT RODRIGUEZ Date:           02/28/2019

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



86
°4

3'
W

86
°4

2'
W

86
°4

1'
W

86
°4

0'
W

86
°3

9'
W

86
°3

8'
W

86
33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N 86

°4
3'

W
86

°4
2'

W
86

°4
1'

W
86

°4
0'

W
86

°3
9'

W
86

°3
8'

W
86

33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N
Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



86
°4

3'
W

86
°4

2'
W

86
°4

1'
W

86
°4

0'
W

86
°3

9'
W

86
°3

8'
W

86
33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N 86

°4
3'

W
86

°4
2'

W
86

°4
1'

W
86

°4
0'

W
86

°3
9'

W
86

°3
8'

W
86

33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N
Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



86
°4

3'
W

86
°4

2'
W

86
°4

1'
W

86
°4

0'
W

86
°3

9'
W

86
°3

8'
W

86
33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N 86

°4
3'

W
86

°4
2'

W
86

°4
1'

W
86

°4
0'

W
86

°3
9'

W
86

°3
8'

W
86

33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N
Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Ordinance Number 2873 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2873 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS INST 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 (estate 

residential) to Vestavia Hills Inst (institutional district):  

2647 Gresham Drive 
Acreage Adjacent to the former Gresham School 

City of Vestavia Hills Board of Education, Owner(s) 

A parcel of land lying in the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 
28, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being 
more particularly described as follows: 

BEGIN at a 2" capped rebar found and locally accepted to be the Southwest 
corner of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 28, said 
point also being a point on the East right of way margin of Gresham Drive 
(50’ right of way); thence run in a Northerly direction along the West line 
of said 1/4-1/4 section and along said East right of way for a distance of 
365.04 feet to a 1/2" rebar found; thence turn right 92 degrees 05 minutes 
00 seconds, leaving the West line of said 1/4-1/4 section and said right of 
way, and run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 238.70 feet to an iron 
pin set; thence turn right 87 degrees 55 minutes 09 seconds and run in a 
southerly direction for a distance of 365.46 feet to an iron pin set on the 
South line of said 1/4-1/4 section; thence run in a Westerly direction along 
said South line for a distance of 238.70 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
Containing 2.00 acres, more or less. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said zoning is conditioned upon the Vestavia 

Hills Board of Education ownership and should the Vestavia Hills Board of Education 

choose to sell the property, in such event, this Ordinance Number 2873 shall be rescinded 

in its entirety and the property rezoned to the original Jefferson County E-1 zoning 

classification. 



Ordinance Number 2873 
Page 2 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of October, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2873 is a true and correct 
copy of such 14th day of October, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2873 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 8, 2019

CASE: P-0819-37

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-1 to Vestavia Hills-INST

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2647 Gresham Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: The Board of Education of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of a property on Gresham Drive from 
JC E-1 to VH-Institutional. The property was just recently purchased by the School 
Board, and is adjacent to the site of the new Dolly Ridge Elementary School. The 
property will be used for school parking. Property was annexed overnight by 
Ordinance 2854 on 6/10/19.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for institutional district. 

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-1 to Vestavia 
Hills-INST with the condition that the zoning revert to the compatible City zoning (Vestavia 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



2

Hills E-2) if the property is no longer owned by the Vestavia Hills Board of Education for the 
property located At 2647 Gresham Drive. Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a 
roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5163

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Ordinance Number 2874 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2874 
 

AN AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2110 AND TO 
FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND THE 
ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS 
LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF ORDINANCE 2110 FOR REZONING 
OF THE PROPERTY TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-2 WITH 
REVISED RESTRICTIONS. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That Ordinance Number 2110 and the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so 

as to change the class of district zoning of the following described property from 

Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-2;  

Lot 1A, Resurvey of Lots 1 & 3, Topfield Subdivision¸ 42/72 
Clint Gentry, Owner(s) 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said rezoning shall be conditioned upon 

the following revised conditions:  (1) that the development be 2 separate lots for the 

construction of 2 commercial buildings (2) that only one curb cut be allowed for the 

entire development for access to Blue Lake Drive, said access to be located opposite of 

Pine Tree Drive; (3) that the buffers be approved by the Vestavia Hills Design Review 

Board at a minimum of 10’ in width as required by the zoning code; (4) that said building 

shall be designed and constructed as a residential nature, said architectural style to be 

approved by the Vestavia Hills Design Review Board; (5) that 5’ sidewalks be 

constructed along the front of the development abutting Blue Lake Drive; (6) that the 

uses approved for the development be limited to B-1 uses as specified in the zoning code 

with the further restriction that no convenience stores, dry cleaning plants, and/or food 



Ordinance Number 2874 
Page 2 

 

service establishments be permitted; and (7) that a request be submitted by the applicant 

to the Chief of Police of the Vestavia Hills Police Department for a 4-way stop sign to be 

installed at the intersection of Pine Tree and Blue Lake Drive.  

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of October, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2874 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of October, 2019 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest 
Public Library, Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills New Merkel House this 
the ______ day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2874 
Page 3 

 

 
 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 08, 2019

CASE: P-0819-40

REQUESTED ACTION: Amendment to Ordinance 2110 to allow a two story 
development

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3100 Blue Lake Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: R. Clint Gentry

GENERAL DISCUSSION: When Ordinance 2110 was approved for this lot and its 
neighbor (3104 Blue Lake Dr.) on 9/19/05 with several conditions attached. The 
property has since changed ownership as well as the site plan. To meet the goals of 
the new development, the applicant is asking relief from conditions 2 & 5 or the 
rezoning ordinance. Condition 2 mandated a cross parking agreement between this lot 
and it’s neighbor. That agreement has never been signed and is not needed since each 
individual lot can accommodate its own parking. Condition 5 limited the height to 1.5 
stories, while the new development plan is seeking to build a 2-story structure. The 
building would have a pharmacy on the first floor with offices on the 2nd. The 
proposed site plan is attached.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
plan for retail/mixed use.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to amend Ordinance 2110, removing conditions 2 & 
5, for the property located At 3100 Blue Lake Dr. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Resolution Number 5190 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5190 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A PLAN FOR STREET RESURFACING 
PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE REBUILD ALABAMA 
ACT 

WHEREAS, the Rebuild Alabama Act (“Act”) was effective on September 1, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, newly anticipated revenue earmarked from the Act which is anticipated for 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama for fiscal year 2020 is estimated at $146,400; and 

WHEREAS, the new resources will be used to resurface residential streets within the City 

of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, provisions of the Rebuild Alabama Act requires City Council approval for 

use of the new revenues; and 

WHEREAS, the City maintains a three-year plan for resurfacing that will utilize the new 

resources derived from the Act along with existing resurfacing funds to implement a plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Engineer and the City Manager have reviewed and revised the City’s 

three-year plan for resurfacing and have recommended approval of said plan to utilize both existing 

as well as new revenues derived from the Act; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said three year plan is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 5190 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel it is in the best public interest to adopt 

said plan as recommended by the City Manager. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Resolution Number 5190 
Page 2 

 

1. The attached Exhibit A is hereby approved and adopted by the Mayor and City Council to 

be the approved plan for street resurfacing for the City from both existing anticipated 

FY2020 revenue as well as new revenue derived from the Act; and 

2. Said approved three-year plan shall be maintained on the City’s website; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5190 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of October, 2019. 
 
 
 
 

Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings  
City Clerk 



2019‐2022 PAVING LIST                                                                                                                                                            Linear Footage Miles Est SY Est TN @ 165 #/SY

  
0.18 2323 192
0.30 3872 319
0.13 1337 110
0.16 2065 170
0.41 5773 476
0.15 1584 131
0.63 8870 732
0.22 2839 234
0.40 5632 465
0.20 2064 170
0.25 3227 266
0.16 2065 170

TOTAL MILES 3.11

0.18 2534 209
0.12 1690 139
0.29 4083 337
0.11 1549 128
0.12 1690 139
0.09 1089 90
0.17 2394 197

TOTAL MILES 1.08

0.13 1787 147
0.29 4083 337
0.24 3379 279
0.23 3238 267
0.21 2957 244
0.19 2675 221
0.50 7040 581
0.07 903 75
0.04 563 46
0.32 4506 372
0.40 5632 465
0.06 845 70
0.27 3802 314
0.60 8448 697
0.50 7040 581
0.20 2816 232

TOTAL MILES 4.25

0.38 5350 441
0.36 5069 418
0.22 3098 256
0.40 5632 465
0.27 3802 314
0.48 6758 558
0.07 986 81
0.19 2675 221
0.41 5773 476
0.81 11405 941
0.55 7744 639
0.10 1408 116
0.33 4646 383
0.23 3238 267
0.21 2957 244
0.64 9011 743
0.44 6195 511
0.52 7322 604

TOTAL MILES 6.61

Canton Road 1150
Catala 2130
Cedarbark Lane 1460

                                   HIGHWAY 31 ‐ WEST SIDE
Beverly Hills Drive 2000
Brookdale Lane 1900

1230

Mission Road 2180
Old Creek Trail 4270
Old Orchard Road 2900

Cedarwood Road 2530
Creek Lane 360

Forest Haven Ln 1020

                                 CAHABA HEIGHTS

Vista Circle 300
Vista Lane 1400
Wickford Road 3060

Vesthaven Circle 200
Vesthaven Way 1700
Vestaven Way E 2090

Panorama Trail 2650
Shades Crest Circle 350

Southview Terrace 1120

Comer Place 1210
Forestview Lane 1120

Bearden Court 970
Bearden Drive 1580
Fairhaven Drive 708

Willoughby Road 2640
Woodhue Circle 1080

Green Glen Road 1020

                                   HIGHWAY 31 ‐ EAST SIDE
Cloud Croft Circle 670
Comer Circle 1550
Comer Drive 1290

Portion of Ridgely Drive (Crosshaven Drive to White Oak Drive)

Old Overton Road (Overton Road to Vestavia Hills municipal limits) 3300
Old Wood Lane 1130
Pump House Road (City of Mtn Brook to Dolly Ridge) 1900

Firewood Drive 870
Greendale Road 2150
Oakview Lane 800

Poe Drive 1032
1320

Ridgely Court 870

Southwood Road  (West of Highway 31)                        3370
Vestavia Forest Drive                  2340
Waldridge Road 2760

Pinecrest Lane 540
Shades View Lane 1740
Southridge Drive

                                  COLUMBIANA ROAD/TYLER ROAD
Chatwood Road 920
Edinborough Lane                            660
Fleetway Drive 1550

Willow Brook Lane 890

Frontier Drive 580
Kingswood Road 600
Vestavia Villas Lane 490

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5190



0.09 1267 105
0.26 3661 302
0.07 986 81
0.07 986 81
0.04 563 46
0.03 422 35
0.22 2839 234
0.27 3485 287
0.07 903 75
0.16 2065 170
0.04 516 43
0.04 516 43
0.23 3238 267
0.25 3573 295
0.06 845 70
0.41 4330 357
0.10 1408 116
0.41 5773 476
0.18 2534 209
0.28 3942 325
0.05 704 58
0.29 4083 337
0.13 1678 138
0.36 3379 279
0.10 1408 116
0.45 4224 348
0.25 3520 290

TOTAL MILES 4.91

   
0.10 1278 105
0.14 1800 149
0.26 3051 252
0.14 1643 136
0.32 3755 310
0.22 3098 256

TOTAL MILES 1.06

TOTAL ROAD PAVING MILES = 21

                                  ROCKY RIDGE/DOLLY RIDGE
Ashley Wood Circle 460
Ashley Wood Drive 1320
Ashley Wood Place 370

1340
Cheval Circle 320

Ashley Wood Way 390
Birchwood Circle 200
Birchwood Way 150

Valley Circle                                 2400
1350

Old Oak Lane 1510
Ridge Dell Circle 670
Skyland Drive                               1880

Wisteria Drive (Wagon Gap Trail to Rocky Ridge Road)

Sumner Lane 510

Leslie Ann Road 960
Morningstar Drive 1490
Old Oak Circle 250

Cheval Lane 2170
Country Ridge Lane 520
Hunters Cove 2190

Cedardell Lane 1200
Cherry Tree Lane

Buckhead Road 830
Buckhead Trail 190
Buckhead Way 220

Buckhead Circle 1180
Buckhead Drive 1450
Buckhead Lane 400

Old Looney Mill                         1370
Alta Vista Drive                          760
Alta Vista Circle                                      1670

                                 PATCHWORK FARMS AREA/ALTADENA

Acton Drive                              520

Acton Place                           750

Altacrest Drive 1190

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5190



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5192 
 
 A RESOLUTION RE-APPOINTING A MEMBER TO 

THE VESTAVIA HILLS DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended the reappointment of Jeff Slaton to the 

Vestavia Hills Design Review Board in an email dated October 1, 2019.  A copy of said 

email is marked as Exhibit A and is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 5192 as though written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Council concurs with the Mayor’s recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Jeff Slaton is hereby reappointed to the Vestavia Hills Design Review Board 

effective October 1, 2019; and 

2. Said appointments shall expire on October 1, 2022; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5192 shall become effective upon approval and adoption. 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 14th day of October, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

Subject: FW: 10/14

From: Ashley Curry  
Sent: Tuesday, October 01, 2019 11:00 AM 
To: Dennis Weaver <dweaver@vhal.org>; George Pierce <gpierce@vhal.org>; Kimberly Cook <kcook@vhal.org>; Paul 
Head <phead@vhal.org> 
Cc: Rebecca Leavings <RLeavings@vhal.org>; Conrad Garrison <CGarrison@vhal.org>; Jeff Downes <jdownes@vhal.org> 
Subject: Design Review Board Appointment 
 
All, 
 
Jeff Slaton’s term on the Design Review Board (DRB) expired on September 30, 2019.  I am nominating him to be 
reappointed to the DRB (3 year term).  As you may recall, he was nominated and approved to complete the unexpired 
term of former member, David Blackmon. 
 
Pursuant to Ordinance 2332, this is a “select” group inasmuch as members are licensed architects, landscape architects, 
horticulturists, or similar backgrounds.  The lone exception to these requirements is the resident appointee (a 
citizen).  That spot is currently held by Mae Coshatt.  The ordinance authorizes a mayoral nomination with council 
approval. 
 
I am asking Becky to place this on the next council meeting agenda for your consideration. 
 

 
 
ASHLEY C. CURRY 
Mayor 
P 205 978 0130 | vhal.org 
City of Vestavia Hills 

   
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5192



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5193 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR AMERICAN MULTI CINEMA INC; KEVIN 
MICHAEL CONNER, ADAM MAXIMILLIAN ARON 
AND JOHN DAVID MCDONALD, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for American Multi Cinema Inc, located at 1911 Kentucky Avenue, 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise sale of 160 - Special Retail - More than 30 

Days; Kevin Michael Conner, Adam Maximillian Aron and John David McDonald, 

executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of October, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 





Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5193



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5193



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5193



Ordinance Number 2875 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2875 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
5 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-5 (multi-family 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

2961 Green Valley Road 
Magnum Properties, Owner(s) 

Part of the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 22, Township 18, Range 2 West, 
more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the NW corner of Section 22, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, thence East along the north line of said Section for 353.0 feet to the 
point of beginning, that point being also on the south right-of-way line of 
Green Valley Road; thence continue on last described course and along said 
right-of-way of 160.0 feet; thence 88 degrees 22 minutes right and in a 
southerly direction 329.59 feet to a point on the north line of Wallace 
Murphy’s property; thence 106 degrees 20 minutes 15 seconds right and 
parallel with the Birmingham Water Works Pipe Line right-of-way and 
along the north line of said Wallace Murphy’s property and in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 166.65 feet; thence 73 degrees 09 
minutes and 45 seconds right and in a northerly direction 287.27 feet to the 
point of beginning. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of October, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 2875 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2875 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of October, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 08, 2019

CASE: P-0819-38

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-5 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2961 Green Valley Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Magnum Properties, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 2961 Green Valley Rd. 
from R-5 to R-9. The applicant would demolish the four unit apartment building and 
construct 11 single family homes/lots. The lots would have a front setback of 8’, side 
setbacks of 5’ between dwellings, and a rear setback of 10’. All roads, sidewalks and 
improvements will be private and maintained by a homeowner’s association. The 
proposed site plan, renderings, and covenants are attached.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The plan states this property is for 
low density residential, however, it borders a medium residential single family 
product on both sides and would provide less density than an entitled multi-family 
development.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 



2

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Vestavia Hills R-5 to 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for the property located At 2961 Green Valley Rd.. Second was by Mr. 
Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

















































































































Resolution Number 5191 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5191 

A RESOLUTION RENAMING A STREET 

WHEREAS, in May 2002, following a referendum vote, the Cahaba Heights Fire District 

was annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, the Topfield Subdivision was recorded in the Office of the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County with a street name of “Pine Drive” on May 11, 1955;  

WHEREAS, the street recorded as Pine Drive also been referred to as “Pine Tree Drive;” 

and 

WHEREAS, a search of Jefferson County’s records shows no record of an official street 

name change to “Pine Tree Drive;” and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Public Works Department, following annexation, erected a street 

sign located at the entrance says “Pine Drive;” and 

WHEREAS, E-9-1-1 requires that signage and street names coincide to allow 

enhancement of emergency services throughout the City; and 

WHEREAS, a polling of the residents of that street reportedly either use or are willing to 

use the street name “Pine Tree Drive” and prefer that the name of the street remain as such; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel is in the best interest of the public to 

rename and clarify that the street name is “Pine Tree Drive” and allow the City adopted signage 

reflecting the correct name of the street and notify all government agencies of the same. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The street known as “Pine Drive” and/or “Pine Tree Drive” is hereby named as “Pine Tree

Drive.”

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to notify all agencies of said name of street and

erect City adopted signage to reflect said name; and

3. This Resolution Number 5191 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of October, 2019.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Resolution Number 5191 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191


	Agenda
	Proclamation Magic Moments Day 2019
	September 23 minutes
	Ordinance 2872
	Ordinance 2873
	Ordinance 2874
	Resolution 5190
	Resolution 5192
	Resolution 5193
	Ordinance 2875
	Resolution 5191



